








CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS 

MAY 10, 2021 
 

May 10 
Council Meeting 
Monday, May 10, 2021 
6:30 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall  
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
May 11 
Board of Appeals 
Tuesday, May 11, 2021 
7:00 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30 pm Meeting – Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
May 15 
Extended Farmers’ Market – Farm Products 
Saturday, May 15, 2021 
9:00am-12:00pm 
City Hall Parking Lot 
 
May 16 
Broadcast of 05/10/21 Council Meeting 
Sunday, May 16, 2021 
Watch the broadcast of the 05/10/21 Council Meeting on Comcast Channel 25 at 6:30pm 
 
May 17 
STAT Board Meeting 
Monday, May 17, 2021 
6:00pm – 8:00 pm 
Conference Room 145 
 
May 19 
DDA Meeting 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 
4:00 pm – 5:00 pm  
City Hall Room 259, Second Floor 
 
May 20 
DAS & URA Joint Meeting 
Thursday, May 20, 2021 
4:00 pm to 5:00 pm 
City Hall Room 259, Second Floor 
 
May 24 
Council Meeting 
Monday, May 24, 2021 
6:30pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 





















Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: March 22, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Subdivision Development 

2.765± Acres at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: Public Hearing (2nd Reading) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 13-Lot Single-family Detached subdivision 
development on a 2.765± acre property located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, 
Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 50028 001).  

Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 
Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 

 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: February 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 21-01 RZ 21-01 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: March 8, 2021 (1st Reading)  

March 22, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 

marnold
Typewritten Text

marnold
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXX

marnold
Typewritten Text
April 12, 2021

marnold
Typewritten Text

marnold
Typewritten Text

marnold
Typewritten Text

marnold
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  May 10, 2021

marnold
Typewritten Text
Continued from April 12, 2021



 
 
 
 
2.765± Acre Site at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
March 22, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• #RZ 21-01 Rezoning Application (12-14-2020) 
• #LUP 21-01 Land Use Plan Amendment Application (12-14-2020) 
• Property Boundary Survey and Legal Description (12-09-2020) 
• Rezoning Site Plan (11-23-2020) 
• Sample Floor Plans (12-14-2020) 
• Sample Exterior Elevations (12-14-2020) 
• 2-23-3021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (1-20-

2021) 
• 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (2-24-2021) 
• Unofficial 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes (2-24-

2021) 
• 3-8-2021 & 3-22-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis 

with Planning Commission Report (2-24-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/boundary-survey.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rezoning-site-plan-11-23-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-floor-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-exterior-elevations.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-01-20-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/pc-case-report-rz-21-01-lup-21-01-feb-23-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-02-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-conditions-only-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 

2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot 

single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as 

shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, 

Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in 

Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby changed from Low-Density Residential to Medium-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 6 
 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 6 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-01, which requested to amend the designated land use as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use 

designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; 
TO ADD CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 

Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-

family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from RS-30 (Single-family 

Residential) District to RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District. This action is subject to 

the attachment of the following conditions (1-7): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 

30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021), with 

modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and 

City regulations. Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, as 

determined by the Director of Planning and Development will require Mayor 

and Council approval. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 7 
 

2. All lots shall connect to sanitary sewer. 

3. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of open space, stormwater detention facility, and entrance 

signage. 

4. Twenty (20) percent of the total site area must be conserved as open space and 

subject to the Open Space regulations of Sec. 401-2 of Chapter 4 of the 

Snellville Unified Development Ordinance.  

5. Subdivision entrance signage (if any) shall be located on Open Space. 

6. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

7. Two-car garages are required for dwellings having more than two (2) 

bedrooms. 

Section 2.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 7 
 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 7 
 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-01, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the 

rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 

GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a 

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

 Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 


	Work Session Agenda
	Proposed Peace Plaza

	Public Hearing & Regular Business Agenda
	Announcements
	Minutes for Approval
	RZ 21-01  LUP 21-01  - 2706 Lenora Church Rd - 13 Lot Single Family Homes
	ORD 2021-07 - LUP 21-01 Approval & Denial
	ORD 2021-08 - RZ 21-01 - Approval & Denial




